Main Street Lofts of Denison History
Owners: Steve and Cindy Salem

History: Both 517 & 519 W. Main Street, Denison, Texas is part of the HiBtlowatown Denison. In the
archives at the library Denison Directory, list the
property as early as 1889 when William Elliot was listed as a
~ furniture dealer. The columns that support the brick on the
& buildings have the date 1887 cast into them. It appears
the building has been in near continuous us
since that time. In 1909, the Brooks Tone
Theater was located at 517 & 519 W. Main
Street. In 1915, the theater closed and onct
again a furniture business took over the
building. Sometime before 1924, the
building became Jennings Furniture
Company.

In 1970, this building was converted from Jennings
Furniture to the third expansion of Barrett's Drug Store. The Barrett family owrestbwn’s Piggly
Wiggly and Barrett's Cut Rate Drugs; this was our towr&s general storgince the 50’s. When we
purchased both 517 & 519 W. Main Street buildings, it did not have a front (North) entrance. Wide
interior openings connected the first and second floor to the buildings on both the East and West
side. Barrett closed its doors in 2004. It was vacant until we began restoration in 2008.



Renovationdegan in June 2008. There was no plumbing in the
original building. Electrical wiring was in place, but actual

power was only available to the first floor. Demolition of the 1950’s

. aluminum storefront. Two entrances are built with recessed porches to
SRS Mimic a 1924’s photo of the building.

'Bringing the building up to code for leasing the retail and residential spaces
included adding plumbing, electric, heating and air, and fire suppression system. We replaced the
windows with new energy efficient windows and resurfaced the first-floor exterior to match the
character of the turn of the century construction.

In 2006, the first floor was a large space with one small office and an 8’ adalitioss the back. Vinyl
tiles covered the floor, and a drop-down acoustic ceiling covered the ductwork. We were thrilled to
find the pressed tin ceiling hidden from view but in reasonable shape. The tiles were repurposed
throughout the first floor to help maintain the character of the original building. We wble @

restore the original old pinewood floors.

8 On the second floor, the wood floor and tin ceiling
tiles were visible and in reasonable shape. The
columns you see on the first and second floor are
structural. During renovation we strived to
maintain their artistic value by including them in
the floor plans. The second floor has now been
converted to 4 loft apartments and one small
utility room. Several features add to the character
of the space: Tin Ceilings, Columns, and Exposed
Brick. The windows are framed with lumber
shelving found on the property. Plans are in the
works for four more apartments on the third floor.



120 Years on West Main Street in Denison, Texas

By Vickie Woodard

| recently had the pleasure of meeting Mr. Steve Salem. Steve purchaskdiktieg at 519 West Main
Street in Denison in 2008 and has begun an extensive renovatitee striucture. The beautiful three-story
building now has a fresh facade and a new enthusiasm. Renovation afsthiobr is complete. A dance
studio occupies the entire back half of the first floor and two pssional offices face onto Main Street. Mr.
Salem wanted to salvage as many of the original architectural and historicalréieofehe building while
providing the most up-to-date technology and conveniences. His acempnt of this goal is clear when
you open the heavy leaded-glass door with a large, faceted star in therc€me step off the Main Street
sidewalk, takes you back in time. The pressed tin ceiling tiles and ofigirtaood floors are a testament
to the timeless design and quality of yesteryear. As | stood in the soaring foyer lbttom of the
staircase to the second floor, | began to wonder what the building might have Ideewhen it was first
built. What businesses were located here? Who came in and out of the very spot Whstentered? |
decided to research the history of the building.

The furthest back | was able to find documented history on 517 and 519 WestS¢taiet was 1889.
However, | believe that the ornate columns on the front of the buddane original, displaying a date of
1887. The bulk of my research was found in an incredible collection dafitories that are housed in the
historical archives section at the Denison Public Library. The directories themseheefaaceating walk
back in time to the beginning days of Denison. It was indeed a toeané to read page after page of names
and addresses and business advertisements. The evolution of progress was lzefiooeitmy eyes in
volumes datingrom 1888 to the 1980’s. There is no record of a business or residence locate®l \Atest
Main in the 1888 directory. An entry first appears in the 1889-188€cry. At that time, Benjamin
Harrison was President of the United States. William Elliot isllasea furniture dealer at this address. In
the resident pages, W.W. Elliot is listed as living at the McDougtl,kvhich was in the Union Depot, now
known as the Katy Depot. Another note of interest in 1890 was an advertiddorathe National
Commercial College of Denison. The college was incorporated in 189Quieted6,000 square feet of
floor space and a capacity of 1,500 pupils per annum. In the 1891-1892ddy the college was advertised
as the “Largest Business College in America.”

In the 1891-1892 Directory some interesting facts about the population of Deaismoted. The city has
undergone tremendous growth in since 1876:

1876-77...5,852
188788...12,614
18911892...16,884



Beginning with this volume, the directory has now been entered accorditiget Act of Congress in the year
1890, by Morrison & Fourmy, in the office of the Librarian of Congre¥gaahington, D.C. Benjamin Harrison
is still President at this time.

517 & 519 West Main Street are now listed as Furniture Dealerst; Bliilliam 517-519 West Main, J.R.
Steedman, Manager (Listing in the Business Directory), Mr. William Elattbiisted as the proprietor of
the Furniture Palace which sells furniture, queens ware, whiahhigrd, cream-colored earthenware
perfected in 1765 by Wedgewood, house furnishing goods, pianos & organs.

The next directory available is the 1893-1894 volume. This directory was a cahtibtimgy of both
Sherman and Denison and a general directory of Grayson County. At the pointims) directory the
population of Denison was 19,339 and the population of Grayson County was 57,540difirpbone
numbers first appear in this directory. Grover Cleveland was elected Presidia United States for the
second time in 1893 and served until 1897.

William Elliott is no longer listed as having a furniture storelat-519 West Main in the 1893-94 Directory.
In the Business Directory, Jones Bros is now listed as occupying the building.

“Jones BrogChas H and Coleman R-Jobbers in house furnishing goods, fine fucotarapn
furniture, window curtains, mattresses, mirrors, chairs, glassware, queens wamaré and brooms,
517519 West Main.”

The next directory available is 1898-1899. The U.S. President is now William Maetiolegrved in
office from 1897- 1901. This Directory featured a listing of all sti#lsbusinesses/residents listed
at each address. Chas A Jones is still listed as having a furniturarstiochina hall at 517-519 West
Main.

The turn of the century marked great things for the City of Denison. The pgapubs of March 1,
1901 was 14,692. The 1901-1902 Directory provides this description:

“Since the issuance of our last directory in 1891-92, Denisoallldies and towns the country over, has
passed through a period of unprecedented depression and business stagidiat she has emerged
grandly from the shadows with all her old-time vigor and v, present state of her business, industrial
and railway activities amply evideht

“Building in the past twelve months has been most active. N@dkied in the history of the city can show
a greater increase in the construction of substantial and b&dutomes. Many handsome structures have
been added to the business district aslwel

“The immense cotton factory has been in operation for the past eaghteonths and a ready market
awaits the finishegbroduct.”

Charles H. Jones, Furniture is still listed at 517-519 West Main. Thasslisted as selling furniture,
carpets, stoves, sewing machines, china, glass, and queens ware. Mr. Jones isliateglats319 S.
Barrett Ave.



This directory has a section in the front for Denison and a section in thefdra8kerman. Of note is an
advertisement for Austin College in Sherman:

“Austin Collegd’resbyterian Synodical College. Full Faculty. Full preparatory couesggrsapcommaodations,
full collegiate course of highest grade. Military drill and igigte.

Fees for collegiate year, ten months: Tuition, Preparatory, $45.00, Tuitiegi&e, $50.00, Incidentals,
$6.00.”

The next directory available is 1907. Theodore Roosevelt was elected Presitientbfited States in 1901
and remained in office until 1909.

The approximate population of Denison in 1907 was 18,720. The directory desbebsty:

“Denison has a welesome climate, an enterprising, energetic population with a ramrtdor
commercial integrity and with the development of its many resoutcesl become one of the most
important cities of the Southwest.”

In this directory, C.H. Jones Furniture is listed at 401-403-405 West Me furniture store expanded and
moved to the 400 block of Main.

Now listed at 519 West Main is Modern Roller Rink, T.E. Farr, Manager. It istatbinlthe business
directoryunder “Skating Rinks”

In June 1909, Hiram Brooks and Harry Tone opened the Brooks Tone Opera Hous@&/asbWain. The
opera house closed in 1912. The Brooks Tone Movie Theatre later openedyo2d\1913 at 519 West
Main. Harry’sorother, Lawrence Tone, managed the theatre. Features were five reels of motioingsi

and a “High Class Vaudeville Act”. An entire change of pictures took plattaight and anew vaudeville
act was brought in twice a week. Admission to the show was 10 centdiittsand 5 cents for children. At
the opening of each show on Saturday afternoon, every iladgtendance received a “beautiful souvenir
free.” The theatre closed ih914 and the showplace was bought by Jesse Cook, who then moved all the
theatre’s equipment to another location on Main Street and opettesl Brookstone Air-Dome. It was an
open-air theatre with first-run feature films and vaudeville acts.

The next available directory is the 1913 volume. William Howard Taft was eltedient in 1909 and
ended his term in 1913. The estimated population at that time was 21,66

517-519 West Main is now listed as the Brooks-Tone Theatre.

In 1915 the population of Denison was estimated at 21,835. Woodrow Wilsorleetsd President in 1913
and remained in office until 1921. With the closing of the Brooks Tone Thé&dire& 519 West Main returned
once again to a furniture store with J. W. Hendrick listed as tbpretor.

During the next two years, the city continued to grow with an estimategdulation listed in the 1917
directory of 22,860.



517519 West Main is now listed as WC Boone and People’s Furniture Coriipargds in this directory
have become more appealing with sketched pictures of the goods and servieesdoff

The Denison (hotel) features the exterior of the grand building st&ldmenities of an elevator, baths,
steam heat, and rates of $2.50 & $3.00. A phone is listed in all rooms.

In 1921 the estimated population was listed as 24,930.

517-519 West Mais still listed as People’s Furniture.

For the first time, automotive ads begin to appear in this directory.

By 1927, Calvin Coolidge was President and Denison was described in thargiretiis way:

“For fifty years, Denisethe “Gateway to Texas’has been recognized as a transportation and
distribution center of outstanding importance in the Southwest.Cltyas served by five big rail systems
whose lines extend from the Mississippi River to the Pacific Ocearoamthe Gulf of Mexico to the
Missouri River and beyond.”

517-519 West Main is now listed as Jennings Fumi@o, Inc. “Your Home Furnishers” (See top right
page ad) Herbert Hoover was elected President in 1929 and remained in officE933. The 1929
directory provided more comprehensive demographic information. The pojpulatas estimated at
25,000, with ace percentages ofative whitg 79.3%; Negroes, 17.9%; foreign born, 2.8%”.

A statistical summary provides the following:

2 Banks

Telephones in Service 2,088

Post Office Receipts $60,000

Churches-20

Industry-20 establishments having products valued at $3,600,000 annually.
3 Hotels

5 Railroads

2 Hospitals

10 Schools with 92 teachers

Denison was incorporated in 1873.

In this directory 517-519 West Main is still listed as Jennings Fuer@aor
In 1934, 517-519 West Main was still listed as Jennings Furnitureddgmyth a display ad on the
inside front cover. Waters Transfer Company is also listed as being locdtes atldress.



The population per the 1930 US Census is 13,850 and Franklin D. Roosgelehdresident for a year. He
remained in office until 1945.

Jennings Furniture Company has expanded to include Jennings Bargaiwl8utrelealt in secondhand
furniture at 116 N. Austin Avenue. In 1938, Jennings Furniture Qopguvertised that they have been in
the same location for 28 years at 517-519 West Main. They have a display adinsidlesfront cover of the
directory.

Also, of note in this directory is a preface that states:

“The United States Congress authorized a $54,000,000 +ajelctric flood control dam on the Red River,
four miles northwesbf the city.”

A radio station ad first appears in this directory.

517-519 West Main is still Jennings Furniture Company where theytsgyehey have been located for
the past 31 years. They also list a second location of Jennings-Walter Fummitibe 500 block of Main
Street. The population of Denison per the 1940 U.S. Census is 15,555.

In 1946, Jennings Furniture Co was still at the same location where the st®teehn for the past 37 years.
The estimated population of Denison is 19,000 and Harry S. Truman Breswlent. World War 1l has
ended after the bombing of Pearl Harbor in 1941.

In 1949, the estimated population was 20,500. Jennings Furniture Cogmearains listed at 517-519 West
Main: “Jennings North Side Main Furniture Co, Frank Jennings, 6%n&i19 West Main 39 years in
Denison”

The first mention of Lake Texoma appears in this directory.

In 1951, Jennings Furniture was still in the same location at 517-519 Westaie the store has been
for the past 42 years. The population according to the 1950 U.S. Cen$usmaey report is 23,033.

In 1953, the first ads for televisions began to appear. Jennings Fern@ampany sells them at 517-519
West Main where the store has been located for the past 44 years. The papuddithe time was 17,504.
Dwight D. Eisenhower, whose birthplace is Denison, was elected Presidé&d83 and remained in office for
two terms until 1961. Jennings Furniture Company was located at BB &V est Main Street until the late
1960’s. In 1970, Barrett GiRate Drug expanded into the buildings. The store sold a variety of dndgs a
sundries and included housewares, hardware, sporting goods, cameras, cosmescsiadenerchandise,
and soft goods. The store also featured a soda fountain. Barrett Drugstore orSttagt closed in 2005,
when the store relocated to the FM 120 location across from Wal-Matrt. It ischased permanently;
however, the mid-century neon signs can still be seen at 517 West Main

As time marches on, change takes place. The current project at 519 WesisMantainly a beautiful mix of
history and progress. The innovative restoration of the second and third floarsscale loft apartments is a
testament to the ever-changing landscape of Denison. The lofts are rafgespen-concept areas that
feature original architectural elements including hardwood floors, orrflated columns, tin tile ceilings and
massive windows. Modern conveniences such as whirlpool tubs, granite ctapdgeloft sleeping areas,
ceramic tile and stainless-steel appliance packages make them an eclectic optmmventional apartments



or single-family homes. While some of the lofts have already been letwad, are still two available.
Contact Steve Salem for a tour today at (903) 327-5544.

Sources:

Lang & Young's Directory of the QifyDenison for 1889-1890

Morrison & Fourmy’s General Directory of the City of Denison
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Together with a General Directory of Grayson County 1893-1894
Maloney Directory Co., Compilers and Publishers, Thos J. Maloney, Manager
Maloney’s Denisotsherman City Directory 1898-1899

The Maloney Directory Company, Publishers

Thos J. Maloney, General Manager

190141902 Morrison & Fourmy’s General Directory of the City of Denison
1907 R.L. Polk & Co. Denison City Directory

1913-R.L. Polk & Co’s Denison City Directory

1915R.L. Polk & Co’s Denison City Directory

1917-R.LPolk & Co’s Denison City Directory
1921-R.L. Polk & Co’s Denison City Directory

19274928 R.L. Polk & Co’s Denison City Directory

1929Polk’s DenisoiCity Directory

1934-Worley’s Denison (Grays@ounty, Texas) City Directory
1938Worley’s Denison (Grayson County, Texas) City Directory

1940Worley’s Denison (Grayson County, Texas) City Directory



1946Worley’s Denison (Grayson County, Texas) City Directory
1949-Worleys Denison (Grayson County, Texas) City Directory
1951-Worleys Denison (Grayson County, Texas) City Directory
1953-Worleys Denison (Grayson County, Texas) City Directory

“Theater Row, Movie Palaces of Denison, Tegakdy Holcomb,
copyright 1999 Denison Heritage Inc. Brooks Tone Ad from The
Denison Herald, January 10, 1914.






